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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF APOLLO SUGAR CLINICS LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of APOLLO SUGAR CLINICS LIMITED (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including other comprehensive income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash
Flows for the year the ended on that date, and notes to the Financial statements, including a summary of
_ the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein referred to as “the financial
statements”).

In our opinion and to the bhest of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and its Profit, total comprehensive Income, changes in equity
and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) 330of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the Independence requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the company’s annual report but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements, or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes
in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management or board of directors either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that

includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the

basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.
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¢ Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

® Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materially and qualitative factors in (i)
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the
effect of any identified misstatements in the Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.
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The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on March 31,
2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has not paid any remuneration to its directors during the year.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred by the Company to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund.

(a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which
are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of ultimate beneficiaries.

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate)have been received by the
Company from any person or entity including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”) with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11 (e), as provided under (a) and (b) above,
contain any material misstatement.
v. The Company had not declared any dividend during the year and hence in compliance with section
123 is not applicable.
vi. Based on our examination carried out in accordance with the Implementation Guidance on
Reporting on Audit Trail under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (Revised
2024 Edition) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, we report that the company
has used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the year ended March 31,
2025, which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course
of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with and audit
trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

For Bansi S. Mehta & Co
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No. 100991W
UDIN: 25248321BMJFKR1737

Vinay Lade
Partner
Membership No. 248321

Place: Hyderabad
Date: May 5" 2025
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“ANNEXURE A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirement’ of our report to
the Members of APOLLO SUGAR CLINICS LIMITED of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of APOLLO SUGAR CLINICS
LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to respective company'’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by ICAl and the
Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the
Company.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’).

For Bansi S. Mehta & Co
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No. 100991W
UDIN: 25248321BMIJFKR1737

LA
/J%;y Lade

Partner
Membership No. 248321

Place : Hyderabad
Date : May 5" 2025
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“ANNEXURE B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirement’ of our report of
even date, to the Members of APOLLO SUGAR CLINICS LIMITED for the year ended March 31, 2025)

1.

In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets
(a) (A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including gquantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.
(b) As explained to us, the Company has a regular program of physical verification of its Property,
Plant and Equipment once in every three years. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical
verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.
There were no any material discrepancies found during the year.

(c)The Company does not have any immovable properties and hence the provisions of this clause
are not applicable.

(d) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment) or intangible assets or both
during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on our verification records of
the Company, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company as at March
31, 2025 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988
(45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

(a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion,
the frequency of such verification is reasonable. The Company has maintained proper records of
inventory. The discrepancies noticed on verification between the physical stock and the book
records were not material.

(b) The company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of 5 crore rupees, in
aggregate, at any points of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis
of security of current assets and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not
applicable.

The company has not made investments in, companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships and
had not granted unsecured loans to other parties, during the year, in respect of which:

a) The company has not provided any loans or advances in the nature of loans or stood guarantee
or provided security to any other entity during the year, and hence reporting clause under 3(iii)(a)
of the Order is not applicable.

b) In our opinion, since the investments were not made and hence commenting on the terms and
conditions of the grant of loans, during the year which are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the
Company’s interest, shall not arise

c) Since the loans were not granted by the Company, commenting on the schedule of repayment
of principal and payment of interest if it has been stipulated and the repayments of principal
amounts and receipts of interest have generally been regular as per stipulation, does not arise.
d) Since the Company had not granted loans, commenting on whether there were no overdue
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amount remaining outstanding as at the balance sheet date, does not arise.
e) Since the Company had not granted loans, commenting on loan granted by the Company which
has fallen due during the year, if has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle
the overdues of existing loans given to the same parties, does not arise

f) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment during the year. Hence, reporting
under clause 3(iii)(f) is not applicable.

The Company has not given any loans or made any investments or given any guarantees or
security to the parties covered under Sections 185 and 186 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3
(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits and also there were no amounts which are deemed
to be the deposits. Hence the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of
Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules
framed there under, do not apply to this Company.

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-section
(1) of 148 section of the Companies Act, 2013 for the activities of the Company. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(Vi) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) According to the records, the Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues, including, Income Tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Goods and
Service Tax, and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.
There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax,
Customs Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2025 for a period
of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the records of the Company and the information and explanations given to us,
there were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of statutory dues referred to in subclause
(a) above, that have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any
dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our verification, there
were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of
1961).

(a) Based on our examination of the records of the Company and according to the information
and explanations give to us and, the Company has not availed any loans or other borrowings from
any lender during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(a) of the order does not arise.
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not been declared
wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix) (b) of the order does not arise.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not taken any term loans during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the
order does not arise.
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d) Based on our examination of records of the Company and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company did not raise any funds during the year. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(ix)(d) of the order does not arise.

(e) Based on our examination of records of the Company and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on
account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries or associate companies. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) of the order does not arise.
(f) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not raised loans
during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries companies. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(ix)(f) of the order does not arise.

(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order
is not applicable.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that during the year, the
management of the Company has not come across any fraud and consequently 3(xi)(b) is not
applicable.

(c) The Company has not established any Vigil mechanism, as it is not mandated by Section 177(9)
of the Act. As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints
received by the company during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions of paragraph 3(xii) of the Companies (Auditor’s
Report) Order 2020 are not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 177
and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details of such transactions have
been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.
(a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the
size and the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company
during the year and covering the period upto March 31, 2025, in determining the nature, timing
and extent of our audit procedures.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with its
directors or directors of its holding company, subsidiary company or persons connected with
them. Accordingly, the provisions of paragraph 3(xv) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order
2020 are not applicable.

(a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order
is not applicable.
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(d) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause
3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the
immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year and
accordingly this clause is not applicable.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination
of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us
to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that
this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

The Company has fully spent the required amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
and there are no unspent CSR amount for the year requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in
Schedule VII to the Companies Act or special account in compliance with the provision of sub-
section (6) of section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xx) of the Order is
not applicable for the year.

For Bansi S. Mehta & Co
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No. 100991W
UDIN: 25248321BMJFKR1737

Vinay Lade

Partner
Membership No. 248321

Date: May 5" 2025

Mumbai | Delhi | Surat | Chennai | Hyderabad
Door No : 6-3-655/1, Flat No 302, Second Floor, Meera Mansion, Civil Supplies Lane, Somajiguda, Hyderabad - 500 082

+91-7013340599 & +91-8464026050 | bsmco.hyd@bansimehta.com | www.bansimehta.com
(Hyderabad Branch - Erstwhile Karra & Co.)



Apelio Sugar Clinics Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025
All amounts are in T Lakhs except share data and where otherwise stated

N As at As at
. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
A ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 62 93
(b) Right-of-use of asset 29 329 421
(¢) Goodwill 4 1,845 1,845
(d) Other intangible assets 5 1 1
(e) Financial assets
(i) Other financial assets 6 92 327
(f) Income tax assets (net) 7 29 34
(g) Other non-current assets 8§ 8 -
Total non-current assets 2,366 2,721
Current assets
(a) Inventories 9 13 16
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 10 2,199 1,150
(i1) Cash and cash equivalents 11 89 396
(iii) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 12 2,300 1,802
(iv) Other financial assets 6 75 97
(¢) Other current assets 8 103 85
Total current assets 4,779 3,546
TOTAL ASSETS 7.145 6,267
B EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 13 367 367
(b) Other equity 14 4811 4,194
Total Equity 5,178 4,561
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Lease liabilities 29 210 337
(ii) Other financial habilities 15 3 3
(b) Provisions 16 44 33
Total non-current liabilities 257 373
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Lease liabilities 29 150 109
(ii) Trade payables 17
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 2 6
Total outslanfimg dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 1,308 986
small enterprises
(ii1) Other financial liabilities 15 60 1
(b) Provisions 16 22 16
(c) Other current liabilities 18 168 215
Total current liabilities 1,710 1,333
Total liabilities 1,967 1,706
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 7,145 6,267
Corporate information and material accounting policies 1&2
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements
In terms of our report attached
For Bansi S, Mehta & Co,, For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Apollp Sugar Clinies Limjted

FRN: 100991W

LA\

Vina¥y Lade
Partner
Membership No: 248321

DIN: 10334712 DIN: 07578103

Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad
Date: May 05, 2025 Date: May 05, 2025 Date: May 05, 2025



Apollo Sugar Clinics Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025
All amounts are in ¥ Lakhs except share data and where otherwise stated

Notes For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
I Revenue from operations 19 3,394 3.288
I Other Income 20 154 144
111 Total Income (I+I1) 3,548 3,432
IV Expenses
Cost of medical consumables 21 617 347
Cost of services 22 1,103 1,116
Employee benefits expense 23 579 539
Finance costs 24 36 44
Depreciation and amortisation expense 25 165 155
Other expenses 26 424 440
Total expenses (IV) 2,924 2,841
VvV Profit before tax (I1I-IV) 624 501
VI Tax expense
(1) Current tax - 2
(i1) Deferred tax - -
Total tax expenses - N
VII Profit/ (Loss) for the period (V-VI) 624 591
VIII Other comprehensive Income
(i) Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to statement of profit or
loss
(a) Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liabilities (7) 5
Total other comprehensive loss for the period (@) 5
IX Total comprehensive Income for the year (VII+VIII) 617 596
Earnings per equity share of ¥ 10 each:
Basic & Diluted (in T) 27 17.01 16.11

Sece accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements

In terms of our report attached

For Bansi S. Mehta & Co., For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Apo!{n Sugar Clinics Limited

FRN: 100991W
N
= =

Vinay Lade
Partner
Membership No: 248321

i
dra Sekhar Chi #(\'ula
rector
DIN: 07578103

Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad
Date: May 05, 2025 Date: May 05, 2025 Date: May 05, 2025




Apollo Sugar Clinics Limited
Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2025
All amounts are in T Lakhs except share data and where otherwise stated

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
A. Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 624 591
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 165 155
Finance costs 36 44
Interest income (154) (144)
Provision for doubtful trade receivables 15 -
686 646
Movements in working capital
Adjustments for (increase)/decrease in operating assets:
- Trade receivables (1,004) (129)
- Inventories 3 4
- Other assets (40) (45)
Adjustments for increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities:
- Trade payables 318 257
- Other liabilities 12 (26)
- Provisions 17 8
(754) 66
Cash (used)/generated from operating activities (68) 712
Income taxes (paid) refund 5 50
Net eash generated by operating activities (A) (63) 762
B. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (Including capital work-in-progress (5) (7)
and other intangible assets)
Deposits (placed) with banks (net) (264) (905)
Interest Received 184 94
Net cash generated / (used) in investing acftivities (B) (85) (818)
C. Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid (1) (2)
Payment made against lease liability (158) (140)
Net cash generated from financing activities ( C) (159) (142)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 307 (198)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 396 594
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer Note 11) 89 396
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements
In terms of our report attached
For Bansi S. Mehta & Co., For and on behalf of the Board of
Chartered Accountants Apgllo Sugar Clinies Limited
FRN : 100991W
! ¥
/“k \\ R
Vinay Lad StirapfSrinivasan lyer vukula
s

Partner
Membership No: 248321

Place: Hyderabad
Date: May 05, 2025

Directar
DIN: 10334712

Place: Hyderabad
Date: May 05, 2025

Place: Hyderabad
Date: May 05, 2025



Apollo Sugar Clinics Limited

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

All amounls are 1n ¥ Lakhs except share data and where otherwise stated

Statement of changes in equity

a. Equity share capital

No of shares Amount
Balance as at April 1, 2023 3,668,000 367
- Proceeds from issue of shares - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 3,668,000 367
- Proceeds from issue of shares - -
Balance as at March 31, 2025 3,668,000 367
b. Other equity

Reserve and surplus
g . Retained Total
Securities premium .
carnings

Balance as at April 1, 2023 7,053 (3,455) 3,598
Profit for the year - 591 591
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of taxes - 5 5
Total Comprehensive income for the year - 596 596
Premium on shares issued during the year - - -
Recognition of share-based payments - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 7,053 (2,859) 4,194
Profit for the year 624 624
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of taxes - (7) (7)
Total Comprehensive income for the year - 617 617
Premium on shares issued during the year - -
Recognition of share-based payments - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2025 7,053 (2,242) 4,811

See accompanying notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

In terms of our report attached

For Bansi S. Mehta & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 100991W

k-

Vinay Lade
Partner
Membership No: 248321

Place: Hyderabad
Date: May 05, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Diréeto
Apollo Sugar Clinics Limited

Place: Hyderabad
Date: May 05, 2025

Chandr,

107578103

Sekhar Chiy,

Place: Hyderabad
Date: May 03, 2025




Apollo Sugar Clinics Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
All amounts are in ¥ Lakhs except share data and where otherwise stated

1.

General Information

Apollo Sugar Clinics Limited ('the Company') is a public Company incorporated in India. The address of its registered
office and principal place of business are disclosed in the introduction to the annual report. The main business of the
Company is to enhance the quality of life of patients by providing comprehensive, high -quality diabetic care services
on a cost-effective basis. The principal activities of the Company include providing high & quality care treatment for
diabetes and endocrine ailments.

Material accounting policies
A. Application of new and revised Ind ASs

The company has applied all the Ind ASs notified by the MCA. There are no Ind AS that have not been applied by
the company.

B. Statement of compliance

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Ind ASs notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015.

C. Basis of preparation and presentation

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis and on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period. as explained in the
accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price 1s directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the
fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

D. Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Company's cash-generating units (or
Company’s of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently
when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is
less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carryi nount of each asset in the
unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss.
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.




Apollo Sugar Clinies Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
All amounts are in ¥ Lakhs except share data and where otherwise stated

E. Revenue recognition
a. Rendering of Services
Health care services

Revenue primarily comprises fees charged to patient on account of consultation, lab & package services.
Revenue is recorded and recognised during the period in which the service is provided by the company. The
service revenues are net of diagnostic charges in cases where the company is not the primary obligor and does
not have the pricing latitude. 'Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.
Revenue is reduced for estimated discounts, rebates and other similar allowances. 'Revenue from fees charged
for outpatient hospital/clincial services rendered to insured and corporate patients are subject to approvals for the
insurance companies and corporates. Accordingly, the company estimates the amounts likely to be disallowed
by such companies based on past trends. Since the billing system based on which ASCL recongnises income
primarily resides within host entities, the chances of disallowances/non payments are negligible. The long term
sugar care packages in progress as on 31st March, 2021 have been identified across locations and based on
internal standard weights (arrived at based on Standard set of services provided upon each visit) the revenue on
the same have been booked as deposits to the extent of visits pending by patients under long term care.

Effective April 1, 2018, the Company has applied Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contract with customers which
establishes a comprehensive framework for revenue recognition. Ind AS 115 replaces Ind AS 18 Revenue and
Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts. The Company has adopted Ind AS 115 using the cumulative effect method
(modified retrospective approach). The effect of initially applying this standard was recognised at the date of
initial application (i.e., April 1, 2018). The impact of the adoption of the standard on the financial statements of
the Company was insignificant.

Other Services
(i)  Management fees is recognised over the period of the agreement.
(ii)  Other services fee is recognized on basis of the services rendered and as per the terms of the agreement.

b. Interest Income
Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

F. Leases

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. Identification
of a lease requires significant judgment. The Company uses significant judgement in assessing the lease term
(including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate.

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods covered
by an option to extend the lease if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by
an option to terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. In assessing whether
the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a
lease, it considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Company to exercise
the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The Company revises the lease term
if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease.

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a
portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for Building. The Company recognises right-of-use
asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term at the lease commencement date. The cost of
the right-of-use asset measured at inception shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received,

f-use assets is
y and adjusted



Apollo Sugar Clinies Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
All amounts are in ¥ Lakhs except share data and where otherwise stated

for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from
the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset. The estimated useful lives
of right of use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. Right-of-use assets
are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
Impairment loss, il any, is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses incremental
borrowing rate.

The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 Leases to short-term leases of all assets that
have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value. The lease payments
associated with these leases are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions are accounted at the exchange rate prevailing as on the date of invoice. Current Assets
and Current Liabilities are converted at the rates prevailing as on the Balance sheet date.

Employee benefits
a. Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

For defined benefit retirement plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit
method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. Remeasurement,
comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on
plan assets (excluding net interest), is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised
in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive
income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is
recognised in profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate
at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Defined benefit costs are categorised as
follows:

« service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and
settlements);

* net interest expense or income; and

* remeasurement

The company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item ‘Employee
benefits expense’. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs,

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus in the
company’s defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of any
economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future contributions to the plans.

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the entity can no longer withdraw the offer of
the termination benefit and when the entity recognises any related restructuring costs.

b. Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and
sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured ounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.




Apollo Sugar Clinics Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
All amounts are in ¥ Lakhs except share data and where otherwise stated

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value of the
estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Company in respect of services provided by
employees up to the reporting date.

The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated absences. The employees can carry forward a portion
of the unutilised accumulating compensated absences and utilise it in future periods or receive cash at retirement
or termination of employment. The Company records an obligation for compensated absences in the period in
which the employee renders the services that increases this entitlement. The Company measures the expected
cost of compensated absences as the additional amount that the Company expects to pay as a result of the unused
entitlement that has accumulated at the end of the reporting period. The Company fully contributes all ascertained
liabilities to the fund maintained with the Insurer. The Company recognises accumulated compensated absences
based on actuarial valuation. Non-accumulating compensated absences are recognised in the period in which the
absences occur.

I.  Share-based payment arrangements

The company have granted ESOP to employees and others providing similar services. These are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date. Details regarding the determination of the fair value of equity-settled
share-based transactions are set out in notes to account.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the company's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a
corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting period, the company revises its estimate of the number
of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the
equity-settled employee benefits reserve.

J. Taxation
a. Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’
as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Companies current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. Since the company has
opted the benefit of Sec 115BAA of the Income Tax act 1961 from FY 2019-20 onwards, the company is not
liable to create provision for taxation as per the MAT provisions.

b. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Delerred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of assets and liabililies in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the company is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced fo the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to be recovered.




Apollo Sugar Clinics Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
All amounts are in ¥ Lakhs except share data and where otherwise stated

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

K. Property, plant and equipment

Buildings mainly comprise Leaschold buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation.

Fixtures, plant and medical equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. All repairs and maintenance
costs are charged to the income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

The cost referred above includes GST and the company 1s not availing input tax credit for the GST on capitalized
assefs,

Properties during construction for production, supply or adminisirative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the company’s accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation

Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment is recognised on straight-line method as per the useful life prescribed
m Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013
Estimated useful life is as follows:

Asset Useful lives in years

Plant and equipment 5- 15 years
Medical equipment 13 years
Surgical instruments 3 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Vehicles § years
Electrical installations 10 years

Office equipment 5 years
Computers 3 years

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are periodically reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimates accounted for on a prospective basis.

Leasehold improvements are amortised over the lower of estimated useful life and lease term.

Capital work in progress are items of Property, plant and equipment which are not yet ready for their intended use
and are carried at cost, comprising direct cost and related incidental expenses.

L. Intangible assets

a. Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried s accumulated impairment
losses.
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Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
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b.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination and recognised separately from goodwill are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a business combination are reported at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are
acquired separately.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrving amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Deemed cost on transition to Ind AS

For transition to Ind AS, the company has elected to continue with the carrving value of all of its intangible assets
recognised as of April 1, 2015 (transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value
as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to determine the extent of the impairment loss
(if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest company of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced/impaired to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

M. Inventories

The inventories of consumables and medicare items utilised in providing healthcare services dealt with by the
Company are valued at cost, In the absence of any further estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary
to make the sale, the Net Realisable Value is not applicable. Cost of these inventories comprises of all costs of
purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location after adjusting for GST wherever

applicable, applying the FIFO method.
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N.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, considering the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision
is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of
those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third
party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount
of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Other provisions (including third-party payments for malpractice claims) which are not covered by insurance and
other costs for legal claims are recognised based on legal opinions and management judgment.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

a. Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets

b. Classification of financial assets

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost (except for
debt instruments that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows; and

- the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (except for debt instruments that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss on
initial recognition):

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets; and

- the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely paynients of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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Interest income is recognised in profit or loss for FVTOCI debt instruments. For the purposes of recognising
foreign exchange gains and losses, FVTOCI debt instruments are treated as financial assets measured at
amortised cost. Thus, the exchange differences on the amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss and other
changes in the fair value of FVTOCI financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under the heading of ‘Reserve for debt instruments through other comprehensive income’. When
the investment is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in this reserve is reclassified
to profit or loss.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value.

c. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Investments in Mutual Funds are classified as at FVTPL. Investments in equity instruments are classified as at
FVTPL, unless the company irrevocably elects on initial recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value
in other comprehensive income for investments in equity instruments which are not held for trading.

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or FVTOCI criteria are measured at FVTPL. In
addition, debt instruments that meet the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria but are designated as at
FVTPL are measured at FVTPL.

A financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria or debt instruments that meet the FVTOCI criteria may
be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising
the gains and losses on them on different bases. The company has not designated any debt instrument as at
FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses
arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the ‘Other income’ line item.
Dividend on financial assets at FVIPL is recognised when the company’s right to receive the dividends is
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the
dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be
measured reliably.

d. Impairment of financial assets

The company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured
at amortised cost, lease receivables, trade receivables, other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial
asset, and financial guarantees not designated as at FVTPL.

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default occurring as
the weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the company expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls),
discounted at the original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for purchased or
originated credit-impaired financial assets). The company estimates cash flows by considering all contractual
terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) through the
expected life of that financial instrument.

The company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime expected
credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. If
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the company
measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses.
12-month expected credit losses are portion of the life-time expected credit losses and represent the lifetime cash
shortfalls that will result if default occurs within the 12 months after the reporting date and thus, are not cash
shortfalls that are predicted over the next 12 months.

If the company measured loss allowance for a financial instrument at lifetime expected credit loss model in the
previous period, but determines at the end of a reporting period that the credit risk has not increased significantly
since initial recognition due to improvement in credit quality as compared to the previous period, the company
again measures the loss allowance based on 12-month expected credit losses.
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When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the financial
instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected credit losses. To make that assessment, the company
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and
supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases
in credit risk since initial recognition.

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18, the company always measures the Joss
allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the company
has used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. This expected credit loss allowance is computed
based on a provision matrix which considers historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking
information.

The impairment requirements for the recognition and measurement of a loss allowance are equally applied to
debt instruments at FVTOCI except that the loss allowance is recognised in other comprehensive income and is
not reduced from the carrying amount in the balance sheet.

e. Derecognition of financial assets

The company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another party. If the company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
and continues to control the transferred asset, the company recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the company retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the company continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety. the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would
have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the company retains an option to
repurchase part of a (ransferred asset), the company allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset
between the part it continues to recognise under continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on
the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying
amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part
no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised
in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer
recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

f.  Foreign exchange gains and losses

The fair value of financial assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and
translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period.

- For foreign currency denominated financial assets measured at amortised cost and FVTPL, the exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss except for those which are designated as hedging instruments in
a hedging relationship.

- Changes in the carrying amount of investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI relating to changes in
foreign currency rates are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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h.

recognised in profit or loss and other changes in the fair value of FVTOCI financial assets are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a company entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a company entity are recognised at the proceeds received, net
of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's own equity
instruments.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method

However, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for derecognition or
when the continuing involvement approach applies, financial guarantee contracts issued by the company, and
commitments issued by the company to provide a loan at below-market interest rate are measured in accordance
with the specific accounting policies set out below.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised
cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are
subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense
that is not capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the 'Finance costs' line item.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial gnarantee contracts
A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in accordance with the

terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by a company entity are initially measured at their fair values and, if not
designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

- the amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements of Ind AS 109; and

- the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised in
accordance with the principles of Ind AS 18.
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1.

m.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortised cost at the end
of each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on the amortised cost of
the instruments and are recognised in ‘Other income’.

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency
and translated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting period. For financial liabilities that are measured as at
FVTPL, the foreign exchange component forms part of the fair value gains or losses and is recognised in profit
or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,

or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another party.

P. Past business combinations

The company has elected not to apply Ind AS 103 Business Combinations retrospectively to past business
combinations that occurred before the transition date of April 1, 2015. Consequently,

- The company has kept the same classification for the past business combinations as in its previous GAAP
financial statements;

- The company has not recognised assets and liabilities that were not recognised in accordance with previous’
GAAP in the standalone balance sheet of the acquirer and would also not qualify for recognition in
accordance with Ind AS in the separate balance sheet of the acquiree;

- The company has excluded from its opening balance sheet those items recognised in accordance with
previous GAAP that do not qualify for recognition as an asset or liability under Ind AS;

- The company has tested the goodwill for impairment at the transition date based on the conditions as of the
transition date;

- The effects of the above adjustments have been given to the measurement of non-controlling interests and
deferred tax.

The above exemption in respect of business combinations has also been applied to past acquisitions of investments
in associates, interests in joint ventures and interests in joint operations in which the activity of the joint operation
constitutes a business, as defined in Ind AS 103.

Q). Basis of applying judgements

a.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Company's accounting policies, which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations, that the directors have made

amounts recognised in the standalone financial statements.
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c. Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the company’s assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for linancial reporting purposes. The
business acquisitions made by the company are also accounted at fair values. The board of directors of the
Company has set up a valuation committee, which is headed up by the Chief Financial Officer of the Company,
to determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the company uses market-observable data to the extent it is
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the company engages third party qualified valuers to perform
the valuation. The management works closely with the qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs to the model.

d. Employee Benefits

The cost of defined benefit plans are determined using actuarial valuations. The actuarial valuation involves
making assumptions about discount rates, expected rates of return on assets, future salary increases, mortality
rates and future pension increases. Due to the long-term nature of these plans, such estimates are subject to
significant uncertainty.

e. Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Accounting policies have been followed with respect to estimation uncertainty including impairment of goodwill,
useful life of equipment and fair value measurements, etc., at the end of the reporting period that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

f. Contingent liabilities & Litigations
Contingent liabilities acquired in a business combination are initially measured at fair value at the acquisition
date. At the end of subsequent reporting periods, such contingent liabilities are measured at the higher of the

amount that would be recognised in accordance with Ind AS 37 and the amount initially recognised less
cumulative amortisation recognised.
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Note 4: Goodwill

Goodwill

1. Gross carrying value
Balance as at April 1, 2023

As at

1,845

__ March 31,2025

As at
___ March 31, 2024

1,845

1,845

1,845

Additional amounts recognised from business combinations occurring during the year

Balance as at March 31, 2024

Additional amounts recognised from business combinations occurring during the period

Balance as at March 31, 2025

II. Accumulated Impairment losses

Balance as at April 1, 2023
Impairment loss recognised in the year

Balance as at March 31, 2024

Impairment loss recognised in the year

Balance as at March 31, 2025

II1. Net carrying value
Balance as at March 31, 2024
Balance as at March 31, 2025
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__Amount

1,845

1,845

1,845

1,845
1,845
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Note 5: Other intangible Assets

As at

March 31,2025

As at

___March 31, 2024

Software 1 1
1 1
Software Total
I. Gross carrying value
Balance as at April 1, 2023 13 13
Additions -
Disposals - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 13 13
Additions - -
Disposals -
Balance as at March 31, 2025 13 13
I1. Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Balance as at April 1, 2023 12 12
Amortisation expense for the year - -
Eliminated on disposal of assets - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 12 12
Amortisation expense for the year - -
Eliminated on disposal of assets - -
Balance as at March 31, 2025 12 12
111. Net carrying value
Balance as at March 31, 2024 1 1
Balance as at March 31, 2025 1 1
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Note 6

Note 7

Note 8

Note 9

Note 10

Other financial assets

Financial assets carried at amortised cost:
Security deposits

Interest accrued:

- from bank deposits

Unbilled revenue

Bank deposits with the residual maturity of more than 12 months

Other receivables
Total

Income tax assets (net)

Advance tax/ TDS receivable
Total

Other assets

Capital advances
Prepaid expenses
Advance to employees
Advances to suppliers
- Considered good
Total

Inventories
(valued at lower of cost and net realisable value.)
Medical consumables and others
Total
Trade receivables
- Secured, considered good

- Unsecured, considered good
- Doubttul

Allowance for doubtful debts (expected credit loss allowance)

Total

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

Non Current Current Non Current Current
25 - 26

- 23 53

- 32 - 24
67 301

5 20 - 20

92 75 327 97

As at As at

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

29

34

29

34

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

Non Current Current Non Current Current

7 & % -

1 10 - 7
" 6 - 6
5 87 - 72
8 103 - 85

As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
13 16
13 16
As at As at

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

2,199 1,150
72 57
2,271 1,207
(72) (57)
2,199 1,150

i. In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss towards

expected risk of delays and default in collection.

ii. Trade receivables are unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from providing healtheare services. No interest is charged on the outstanding
balance, regardless of the age of the balance. There are customers who represent more than 5% of the total balance of trade receivables. The risk of non

payment from this customers is considered low.

iii. The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for receivables based on a provision matrix. The
provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience and is adjusted for forward looking information. The expected credit loss allowance is
based on the aging of the days the receivables are due and the rates as given in the provision matrix.

iv. Trade receivables include amounts receivable from related parties (refer note 32)
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Note 11

Note 12

v. Mavement in the expected credit loss

year ended

March 31, 2025

year ended
March 31, 2024

Balance at beginning of the year 57 57
Movement in expected credit loss allowance on trade receivables calculated at lifetime expected credit losses (net) 15 -
Balance at end of the year 72 57
(vi) Trade receivables ageing schedule as on March 31, 2025
Qutstanding for the following periods from the date of transaction
Particulars Less than 6 6 months More than 3 Total
months to 1 year -2 years 2-3 years years
Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 1,614 384 210 1 (10) 2,199
Undisputed Trade receivables — credit impaired - 9 11 i 12 33
Disputed Trade receivables — considered good - - - - - -
Disputed Trade receivables — credit impaired - # - - 39 39
Total 1,614 393 221 2 41 2,271
Less: allowance for credit loss = (9) (1) (1) (51) (72)
Net Trade receivables 1,614 384 210 1 (10) 2,199
Trade receivables ageing schedule as on March 31, 2024
Qutstanding for the following periods from the date of transaction
Particulars Less than 6 6 months More than 3 Total
months to 1 vear 1 =apears 23 years years
Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 856 303 3 1 (13) 1,150
Undisputed Trade receivables — credit impaired 1 1 1 1 11 15
Disputed Trade receivables — considered good - : - - S -
Disputed Trade receivables — credit impaired = * - - 42 42
Total 857 304 4 2 40 1,207
Less: allowance for credit loss (1) () (1) (1 (53) (37)
Net Trade receivables 856 303 3 1 (13) 1,150
Cash and cash equivalents As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
(a) Balances with banks
- in current accounts 89 395
(b) Cash on hand - 1
(c) in deposit accounts
- Original maturity less than 3 months - -
Total 89 396
Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents As at As at

(a) in deposit accounts
- Original maturity more than 3 months and residual
Total

maturity less than 12 months
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March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

2,300

1,802

2,300

1,802
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Note 13 Equity Share Capital As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Authorised Share capital :
4,000,000 Equity Shares (as at March 31, 2024: 4000,000) of ¥ 10 each 400 400
Issued and subscribed capital comprises :
3,668,000 fully paid (as at March 31, 2024: 3,668,000) of % 10 each 367 367
367 367
(i) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:
Number of shares Share capital
{Amount)
Balance as at April 1, 2023 3,668,000 367
Issued during the vear - -
Balance at March 31, 2024 3,668,000 367
Issued during the period s
Balance as at March 31, 2025 3,668,000 367
(ii) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to the equity shares:
The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a face value of * 10/- each. Each holder of equity share is eligible for one vote per
share held. In the event of liquidation, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Company in proporticn to the number
of equity shares held by the shareholders. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of shareholders at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting.
(iii) Details of shares held by the holding company:
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
held held
Apollo Health & Lifestyle Limited 2,934,340 293 2,934,340 293
(iv) Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% of the equity shares:
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Number of shares % holding of Number of shares % holding of equity
held equity shares held shares
Apollo Health & Lifestyle Limited 2,934,340 80.00% 2,934,340 80.00%
Sanofi Healtheare India Private Limited 733,600 20.00% 733,600 20.00%
(v) Details of shares held by promoters
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Particulars No. of shares % oftotal % Change during No. of shares % of total shares % Change during the
shares the year year
Apollo Health and Lifestyle Limited 2,934,340 80.00% 0.00% 2,934,340 80.00% 0.00%
Ms.Preetha Reddy 10 0.00% 0.00% 10 0.00% 0.00%
Ms.Suneeta Reddy 10 0.00% 0.00% 10 0.00% 0.00%
Ms. Sangita Reddy 10 0.00% 0.00% 10 0.00% 0.00%
Ms.Shobana Kamineni 10 0.00% 0.00% 10 0.00% 0.00%
Mr.Sudhir M Diggikar 10 0.00% 0.00% 10 0.00% 0.00%
Mr.Anindith Reddy 10 0.00% 0.00% 10 0.00% 0.00%
Note 14 Other equity excluding non-controlling interests
As at Asat

(i) Securities premium reserve
(ii) Retained earnings

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

7,053 7,053
(2,242) (2,859)
4,811 4,194
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Note 15

Note 16

Note 17

(i) Securifies premium

Balance at beginning of year
Issue of shares during the vear
Balance at end of the year

As at
March 31, 2025

Asat
March 31, 2024

This represents the premium on issue of shares and can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

(ii) Retained earnings

Balance at beginning of year
Profit/(loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income arising out of remeasurement of defined benefit obligation

{net of taxes)

Balance at end of the year

7,053 7,053
7.053 7,053
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(2,859) (3,455)
624 591
(7) 5
(2,242) (2859

Retained earnings represents the cumulative undistributed profits of the Company and can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,

2013.

QOther financial liabilities

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

Non Current Current Non Current Current
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:
Security Deposits 3 - 3 -
Other liabilities
- Payables on purchase of property, plant and equipment - 1 - 1
- Other Payables - 59 - -
Total 3 60 3 1
Provisions As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Non Current Current Non Current Current
Employee benefits
- Compensated absences 11 8 9 6
- Gratuity 33 14 24 10
Total 44 22 33 16
Trade Payables As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Trade Payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 2 6
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,308 987
Total 1,310 993
Trade payables ageing schedule as on March 31, 2025
Qutstanding for following periods from due date of pavment
Particul: $8
artieutars Not Due Les\s’;:;m i 1-2 years 2 -3 years More than 3 years Total
MSME - 2 - - - 2
Others - 450 187 140 531 1,308
Disputed dues - MSME - C - -
Disputed dues - Others - - - - -
Total 452 187 140 531 1,310




Apollo Sugar Clinies Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
All amounts are in ¥ Lakhs except share data and where otherwise stated

Trade payables ageing schedule as on March 31, 2024

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars
artieutars Not Due Lesi‘f:fn ! 1-2years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
MSME - 5 1 - | 6
Others - 448 184 227 128 987
Disputed dues - MSME - - z s e "

Disputed dues - Others - - . - = 4

Total 453 185 227 129 993

Note 18 Other current liabilities As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024

Advances from customer 136 155

Statutory remittances (TDS, GST, etc.) 32 60

Total 168 215
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Note 19 Revenue from operations

(a) Sale of services

(b) Other operating revenues
- Franchisee fee
- Others

Total

Note 20 Other income

a) Interest income earned on financial assets that are not designated as at fair value
through profit or loss:

- Interest on bank deposits
Total [a+b]

Note 21 Cost of medical consumables

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

3,232 2,995
98 224
64 69
3,394 3,288

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

154

144

154

144

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Medical consumables 610 526
Printing and stationery 7 21
Total 617 547
PBastlenias For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening Inventory 16 16
Add: Purchases 614 547
Less: Closing mventory 13 16
Total 617 547
For the year ended For the year ended
Note 22 Cost of services March 31, 2025 Mareh 31, 2024
Professional fee to doctors 1,012 1.029
Franchisee service charges 30 18
Laboratory tests and ambulance charges 55 63
Others 6 6
Total 1,103 1,116

Note 23 Employee benefits expense

Salaries and wages

Contribution to provident and other funds
Gratuity expenses

Staff welfare expenses

Total
Note 24 Finance costs
Bank and finance charges
Interest Expense on Lease Liability
Total

Note 25 Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation on right on use of assets
Total

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
498 486

24 24

9 9

48 20

579 539

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

1 2
35 42
36 44

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
36 42

129 113

165 155
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Note 26 Other expenses

Note:

Power and fuel
House keeping expenses
Rent
Repairs and maintenance

- Building

- Machinery

- Others
Communication expenses
Office maintenance expenses
Insurance
Rates and taxes
Printing and stationery
Recruitment charges
Advertisement and sales promotion
Travelling and conveyance
Legal and professional charges
CSR expenditure
Payment to auditors
Provision for doubtful debts

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (net)/ written off

Loss on termination of Leases
Miscellaneous expenses
Total

Payment to auditors
- Statutory Audit Fee (Including limited review fee)
- Tax Audit Fee
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For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
14 13
15 14
50 84

5 8
2 6
65 37
19 31
5 6
1 1
R 3
2 2
3 4
118 148
14 9
50 14
9 6
6
15 s
- 2
31 46
424 440
5 5
1 1
6 6
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Note 27 Earnings per share For the year ended For the vear ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(i) Profit/(Loss) after tax A 624 591
Basic
(ii) Weighted average number of equity shares of 2 10/- each outstanding during the vear B 3,668,000 3,668,000
Dilution

(iii) Effect of potential equity shares on employees stock option outstanding - o
(iv) Weighted average number of equily shares of ¥ 10/- each outstanding during the year e 3,668,000 3,668,000

Earnings per equity share of Rs.10 each

(v) Basic (in %) - [A/B] 17.01 16.11
(vi) Diluted (in ) -[A/C] 17.01 16.11

Note 28 Disclosure required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act)

As at As at

FArtawars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

(1) Principal amount due to suppliers under MSMED Act, as at the end of the year 1 6

(i1) Interest accrued and due to suppliers under MSMED Act on the above amount as at the 1 -

end of the year

(i11) Payment made to suppliers (other than interest) beyond the appointed day, during the - -

year

(iv) Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act (other than Section 16) -

(v) Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act (Section 16) - -

(vi) Interest due and payable to suppliers under MSMED Act, for payments - 2
already made

(vii) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year to suppliers under 1 -
MSMED Act (i) + (iv)

Dues to Micro and Small Enferprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information collected by the
Management. This has been relied upon by the auditors.

Space intentionally left blank




Apollo Sugar Clinics Limited
Notes forming part of standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
All amounts are in T Lakhs except share data and where otherwise stated

Note 29:

Leases

Following are the changes in the carrying value of right of use assets

For the year ended

For the year ended

Farneylats March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Opening Balance 421 33
Additions 37 501
Deletions - -
Depreciation (129) (113)
Closing Balance 329 421

The aggregate depreciation expense on RQU assets is included under depreciation and amortization expense in the statement of profit and loss

The following is the movement in lease liabilities

For the year ended

For the year ended

Fresicuans March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Opening Balance 446 43
Additions 37 501
Deletions - -
Finance cost accrued during the year 35 42
Payment of lease liabilities (158) (140)
Closing Balance 360 446
The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities
Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Non-current lease liabilities 210 337
Current lease liabilities 150 109
Total 360 446
The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities on discounted basis
Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Within one year 150 109
Afier one year but not more than five years 210 337
360 440
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Note 30: Revenue from contracts with customers

The Company earns revenue primarily by providing Diabetic healthcare services operating through various diabetic clinies.

Revenues for the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 are as follows:

Disaggregation of revenue

The spread of operation of the company are only in India and so the below table summaries the region wise revenue within India.

Healthcare services

Region For the Year ended For the Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Telangana 616 603
Tamilnadu 1,535 1,573
Karnataka 537 480
Maharashtra 272 184
Others 434 448
Total revenue from contracts with customers from healthcare 3,394 3,288

Category of Customer

For the Year ended

For the Year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Cash 481 376
Credit 2,913 2,912
Total revenue from contracts with customers 3,394 3,288

Nature of treatment*

For the Year ended
March 31, 2025

For the Year ended
March 31, 2024

In-Patient
Out-Patient

3,394

3,288

Total revenue from contracts with customers from healthcare services

3,394

3,288

* this disclosure pertain to healthcare services segment only

Timing of revenue recognition

For the Year ended
March 31, 2025

For the Year ended
March 31, 2024

Services transferred at point in time 3,394 3,288
Services transferred over a period ol time - -
Total revenue from contracts with customers 3,394 3,288

Contract liability
Changes in advance received from customers are as follows:

Particulars

For the Year ended

For the Year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at the beginning of the year 155 142
Additions 136 547
Revenue recognized that was included in advance received from customers balance at beginning of the year
135 535
Balance at the end of the year 136 155

The total of disaggregated revenue of healtheare disclosed above would agree to the disclosures made in the operating segment.

Reconciliation of revenue recognised with the contract price is as follows:

Healthcare Services

Particulars

For the Year ended
March 31, 2025

For the Year ended
March 31, 2024

Contract price (as reflected in the invoice raised on the customer as per the terms of the contract with customer) 1,617 4,568
Reduction towards monies received on behalf of :

-Fee for Service Consultants 1,777 1,656
Revenue recognised in the profit & loss account 3,394 3,288
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Note 31: Employcee benefits

a. Defined contribution plans

The Company makes Provident Fund and Employees” State Insurance Scheme contributions which are defined contribution plans, for qualifying employees. The
Company recognised 2 24 Lakhs (Year ended March 31, 2024: % 24 Lakhs) for provident fund contributions and 2 | Lakhs (year ended March 31, 2024: T 2 Lakhs)

towards Employees’ State Insurance Scheme contributions in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the year.

The Company provides to the eligible employees defined benefit plans in the form of gratuity. The gratuity plan provides for a lump sum payment to vested employees
at retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment of an amount equivalent to 15 days” salary payable for each completed year of service.
Vesting occurs upon completion of five continuous vears of service. The measurement date used for determining retirement benefits for gratuity is March 31.

(i) Balance Sheet

The assets, liabilities and surplus / (deficit) position of the defined benefit plans at the Balance Sheet date were:

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Present value of obligation 47 34
(ii) Movements in Present Value of Obligation and Fair Value of Plan Assets
Plan Obligation Total
As at April 1, 2023 34 34
Current service cost 7 7
Interest cost 2 2
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in demographic assumptions - -
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in financial assumptions - -
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from experience adjustments (3) (5)
Benefit paid (4) (4)
As at March 31, 2024 34 34
Current service cost 7 7
Interest cost 2 2
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in demographic assumptions - -
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in financial assumptions - -
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from experience adjustiments 7 7
Benefit paid (3) 3)
As at March 31, 2025 47 47

(iii) Statement of Profit and Loss

The charge to the Statement of Profit and Loss comprises:

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Employee Benefit Expenses
Current service cost
Interest cost

Net impact on profit before tax

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit plans:
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in demographic assumptions

Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in financial assumptions
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from experience adjustments

Net impact on other comprehensive income before tax

7 7
2 2
9 9
7 (5)
7 (5)
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(iv) Assumptions

With the objective of presenting the plan assets and plan obligations of the defined benefits plans at their fair value on the Balance Sheet, assumptions under Ind AS 19
are set by reference to market conditions at the valuation date.

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Discount rate 7.01% 7.23%
Attrition rate 35.00% 35.00%
Salary escalation rate 5% 5%
Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives
Mortality rate Mortality (2012-14) Mortality (2012-14)
Ultimate table Ultimate table

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, takes into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as suppls
and demand factors in the employment market.

(v) Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity of the overall plan obligations to changes in the weighted key assumptions are:

As at Ags at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease |
Discount rate (1% movement) 46 48 33 34
Attrition rate (1% movement) 47 47 33 33
Salary escalation rate (1% movement) 48 45 34 32

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the year and may nc
be representative of the actual change. It is based on a change in the key assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. When calculating the sensitivity (4
the assumption, the same method used to calculate the liability recognised in the Balance Sheet has been applied. The methods and types of assumptions used it
preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared with the previous year.

(vi) Maturity analysis
Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation:

As at As ai

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Within 1 year 14 10
1-2 year 11 7
2-3 year 9 P
3-4 year 7 5
4-5 year 5 4
5-10 year 11 10
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Note 32: Related party transactions

a) Names of related parties and their relationship:

Name of the party Nature of relationship

Apollo Hospitals Enterprise Limited Ultimate Holding Company

Apollo Specialty Hospitals Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary

Alliance Dental Care Limited Fellow Subsidiary

Apollo Pharmacies Limited Company in which KMP/Directors or their relatives are interested
Medvarsity Online Limted Company in which KMP/Directors or their relatives are interested
Imperial Hospital & Research Centre Limited Company in which KMP/Directors or their relatives are interested
Indraprastha Medical Corporation Limited Company in which KMP/Directors or their relatives are interested
Apollo Gleneagles Hospital Limited Company in which KMP/Directors or their relatives are interested
Sanofi India Limited Company in which KMP/Directors or their relatives are interested
Family Health Plan Insurance TPA Limited Company in which KMP/Directors or their relatives are interested
Indian Hospitex Private Limited Company in which KMP/Directors or their relatives are interested
HealthNet Global Limited Company in which KMP/Directors or their relatives are interested
Scarchlight Health Private Limited Company in which KMP/Directors or their relatives are interested
Together Against Diabetic Foundation Trust Company in which KMP/Directors or their relatives are interested
Apollo Munich Health Insurance Company Limited Company in which KMP/Directors or their relatives are interested
Apollo Healthco Limited(24/7) Company in which KMP/Directors or their relatives are interested
Sangita Reddy Director

Chandra Sekhar Chivukula Director

Hariprasad Kovalamuri Director

b) Transactions with the above related parties during the year:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
S March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Sale of Services

Imperial Hospital & Research Centre Limited 197 190

Indraprastha Medical Corporation Limited - 7

Apollo Hospitals Enterprise Limited 4,098 3917

Apollo Health and Lifestyle Limited 79 10

Sanofi India Limited - -

Medvarsity Online Ltd 3 6

Apollo Healthco Limited(24/7) 37 64
HO Sharing Expenses

Apollo Health and Lifestyle Limited 45 39
Purchase of medical consumables

Apollo Hospitals Enterprise Limited 410 395
Doctor Cost

Apollo Hospitals Enterprise Limited 44 57

Imperial Hospital & Research Centre Limited - 38
Lab outsourcing services

Apollo Health and Lifestyle Limited 59 50

Tmperial Hospital and Research Centre Limited 42 50

Apolle Hospitals Enterprise Limited 1,699 1,500
Rent

Imperial Hospital & Research Centre Limited 6 6

Apollo Hospitals Enterprise Limited 139 139
IT charges

Apollo Hospitals Enterprise Limited 14 14
Availing of services

2

Searchlight Health Private Limited
Alliance Dental Care Limited 29 20
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¢) Balances receivable from/payable to related parties are as follows:

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Trade receivable
Apollo Hospitals Enterprise Limited 1,635 970
Imperial Hospital & Research Centre Limited 40 12
Apollo Gleneagles Hospital Limited 20 20
Apollo Health and Lifestyle Limited 31 4
Medavarsity Online Limited 2 2
Apollo Healthco Limited(24/7) - P

Trade payable

Apollo Pharmacies Lid # 147
Apollo Health and Lifestyle Limited - 50
Apollo Specialty Hospitals Private Limited - 22
Healthnet Global Limited & 3
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Note 33: Financial instruments

(i) Capital management
Equity share capital and other equity are considered for the purpose of Company's capital management.

(ii) Financial risk management
The Company’s business activities are exposed to a variety of financials risks, namely credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management has the
overall responsibility for establishing and governing the Company’s risk management framework, The Company’s risk management policies are established to
identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, periodically review the changes in market conditions and reflect the changes in the policy accordingly. The
key risks and mitigating actions are overseen by the Board of Directors of the Company.

A Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. The Company takes due
care while extending any credit as per the approval matrix approved by Board of Directors.

Trade receivables

Concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables are limited, due to Company's customer base being large and diverse. All trade receivables are
reviewed and assessed for default on a monthly basis.

Historical experience of collecting receivables is that credit risk is low. Hence, trade receivables are considered to be a single class of financial assets. The
Company does not have significant credit risk exposure to any single counter party.
Other financial assets

The Company maintain exposure in cash and cash equivalent, term deposits with banks. The Company's maximum exposure of credit risk as at March 31, 2025
and March 31, 2024 is the carrying value of each class of financial assets.

B Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Company manages its liquidity risk by
ensuring, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due. Also, the Company has unutilised credit limits with
banks. The Company maintained a cautious liquidity strategy, with a positive cash balance throughout the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024,
Cash flow from operating activities provides the funds to service the financial liabilities on a day to day basis.

The Company regularly maintains the rolling forecasts to ensure it has sufficient cash on an on-going basis to meet operational needs. Any short-term surplus
cash generated, over and above the amount required for working capital management and other operational requirements, is retained as cash and cash

equivalents (to the exient required) and any excess is invested in interest bearing short term deposits with appropriate maturities to optimise the cash returns on
investments while ensuring sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities.

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as of March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2025

Other financial

Particulars Lease Liabilities Trade payables el

Y liahilities
Less than 1 year 150 1,310 63
More than 1 year and less than 5 year 210 - -

More than 5 year - - -

As at March 31, 2024

Other financial

Particulars Lease Liabilities Trade payables .

: liabilities
Less than 1 year 109 992 4
More than 1 year and less than 5 year 337 - -

More than 5 year 2 % &
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Note 34:

Note 35:

Category-wise classification of Financial Instruments

The carrying and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 is as follows:

Carrying value

Fair value

Y Fair value
Particulars Hisrarchv As at As at

i March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Financial assets
Measured at Amortised cost
(i) Investment in Mutual Funds NA - - - -
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents NA 89 396 89 396
(iii) Other bank balances NA 2,300 1,802 2,300 1,802
(iv) Trade receivables NA 2,199 1,150 2,199 1,150
(v) Other financial assets * NA 167 424 167 424
Taotal Financial assets 4,755 3,772 4,755 3172
Financial liabilities
Measured at Amortised cost
(i) Trade payables NA 1,310 992 1,310 992
(ii) Other financial liabilitics ** NA 63 4 63 4
(iii) Lease liabilities NA 360 446 360 446
Total Financial liabilities 1,733 1,442 1,733 1,442

* Other financial assets includes Security deposits, unbilled revenue, interest accrued from Bank deposits and other receivables.
*# Other financial labilities includes security deposits received from customers and payable on purchase of property, plant and equipment,

Calculation of fair values

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair values are consistent with those used for

the year ended March 31, 2024

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value as at balance sheet date.
The fair values of investments in unquoted equity investiments has been estimated using a discounted cash flow model under income approach. The valuation
requires management to make certain assumptions about model inputs, including forecast cash flows, discount rate and credit risk, the probabilities of the

various estimates within range can be reasonably assessed and are used in management estimate of fair value for these unquoted investments.
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Note 36;: The following are the analytical vatios for the year ended March 31. 2025 and Maich 31, 2024

Particulars Numerator Denoan_étor March 31,jMarch 31,[Variance Re-a_s_ons for variance
2025 2024

Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 2.79 2.66 5%
IDebt Equity Ratio Total Debt* Sharcholder's Equity NA NA g
Debt Service Coverage Ratio |Earnings available for |Debt service™ 5.22 5.64 7%

debt service™®
Inventory Turnover Ratio Revenue from Average Inventory 234.07 205.50 14%

Operations
Trade Receivable Turnover  |credit Sales Average Receivables 1.74 2.68 -35%| Decrease is primarily on account of
Ratio increase in trade receivables
Trade Payable Turnover Ratio| Credit Purchases Average Trade 1.85 2.44 -24%

Payables
Net Capital Turnover Ratio  |Revenue from Working Capital*® 1.11 1.49 -26%| Decrease is primarily on account of
| Operations increase in current assets
Nel Profit Ratio Net Profits afler taxes |[Revenue from 0.18 0.18 2%
Operations

Return on Capital Emploved |Earnings before Capital Employed* 0.12 0.13 =7%|

interest and tax (EBIT)
Return on Investment™ Income generated from|Investment NA NA E

investmenis
*Notes:

1) Total debt = Longterm borrowings + Short term borrowings + Interest accrued on borrowings
ii) Earnings available for debt service = Net Profit after tax + Depreciation + Interest Expense
iii) Debt Service = Principal repayments of borrowings + Interest payments + Lease Payments
iv) Working Capital = Current assets - Current Liabilities

v) Capital Employed = Tangible networth + Total debt including Interest

vi) The company does not have any market linked investments.

Note 37:  Details of Corporate Social Responsibility Expenditure

During the year, the amount required to be spent on corporale social responsibility activities amounted to T 9 lakhs (March 31, 2024 : 2 6 lakhs ) in accordance
with Section 135 of the Act. The following amounts were actually spent during the current year.

For the year ended March 31, 2025 For the vear ended Mareh 31, 2024
Particulars Yet to be
In Cash Yet to be paid in cash Total In Cash paid in Total
cash
i. Construction / - - - . - =
acquisition of any asset
ii. Purpose other than (i) 9 - 9 6 - 6

above*

* Donated to Total Health, a non profit entity engaged in the activities of promoting rural community.
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Note 38:

Note 39:

Other Statutory Information
i) The Company does not have any Benami propeity, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.

i) The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off.

iii) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

iv) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

v) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

vi) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries)
or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

vii) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether
recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
viii) The Company does not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been sumrendered or disclosed as income during the
vear in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

The financial statements are approved by the Board of Directors on May 05, 2025.
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